PROPOSAL FOR HONEY PRODUCTION IN JOUN

To become a leading Honey producer in Lebanon, promoting local agriculture and providing health products to the community.

Antoine J. Burkush, PhD

Contents

Acknowledgments	5
الشكر والتقدير	6
Preface	8
Proposal for Honey Production in Joun	
PURPOSE OF THE DOCUMENT	11
ABOUT HONEY	11
HONEY CATEGORIES	
Historical Importance of Honey	
Formulation of Honey	
Important Uses of Honey	
Promoting beekeeping projects as a source of livelihoods	
Market Analysis	
The Global Market	
The Market in Lebanon	
Current State of Beekeeping	
Market Potential	
Value Chain Analysis	
Community and Environmental Impact	
Some Specifics for The Beekeeping Project	
Site Selection	
Hive Setup	
Bee Acquisition	
Management Practices	
Harvesting	
Marketing and Sales	
Community Engagement	
Sustainability and Certification	
Monitoring and Evaluation	

Business Plan for the Beekeeping Project in Joun	. 22
Executive Summary	. 22
Market Analysis	. 22
Business Model	. 22
Marketing and Sales Strategy	. 22
Financial Plan	. 22
Operations Plan	. 23
Risk Assessment	. 23
Sustainability and Certification	. 23
Monitoring and Evaluation	. 23
Risk Assessment	. 24
Key Challenges	. 25
Marketing Plan	. 27
Packaging	. 29
The Honey Processing Steps	. 30
Manufacturing Process	. 32
Flow of Honey Processing	. 33
PROJECT COMPONENTS	. 41
Land & Building	. 41
Power Requirement	. 43
STANDARDS FORMING AGENCIES CODEX, EU COUNCIL DIRECTIVES	. 43
LICENSE & APPROVALS	. 43
Detailed staffing plan for your beekeeping project in Joun:	. 44
Key Roles and Responsibilities	. 44
Training and Development	. 44
Staffing Levels	. 44
Recruitment and Retention	45
Volunteers and Seasonal Workers	45
Layout for Your Beekeeping Operation in Joun	. 45
Automatic Honey Processing Line	47

	An Example of Grant Request Project Proposal on "Promoting Beekeeping for	10
		40
	Local Sources of Support and Resources	50
	International Donors And Organizations That Support Beekeeping Projects	51
	1. United Nations Agencies	51
	2. International NGOs and Charities	51
	3. Foundations and Trusts	52
	4. Government Aid Programs	52
	5. Private Donors and Philanthropists	52
	6. Online Funding Platforms	52
	Project Impact on Joun	53
	Business Plan for Beekeeping Operation in Joun	54
	Business Overview:	54
	Mission Statement:	54
	Vision Statement:	54
	Business Goals:	54
	Market Research	54
	Competitive Advantage:	55
	Operations Plan	55
	Production Process:	56
	Marketing Plan	56
	Financial Plan	57
	Management and Staffing	57
	Sustainability and Expansion Plan	58
	Risk Analysis	58
	Conclusion:	58
Е	ND OF THE DOCUMENT	59

Acknowledgments

This collection of proposals is the result of a shared vision and a collaborative journey, guided by the input, dedication, and insights of countless individuals who hold Joun close to their hearts. It would not have been possible without the unwavering support and contributions of community members, experts, stakeholders, and local leaders, each of whom brought their unique perspectives to the table.

First and foremost, I extend my heartfelt gratitude to the residents of Joun, whose voices, ideas, and aspirations have been the foundation of this work. Your willingness to share your thoughts and dreams for our town has been invaluable in shaping proposals that truly reflect our community's spirit and goals. Your participation in discussions, surveys, and community gatherings has been a testament to your commitment to Joun's future.

Special thanks to all whose contributions were instrumental in refining our vision.

To the local leaders and stakeholders who championed this project, your support has been a vital source of encouragement. Your leadership and understanding of Joun's unique challenges and opportunities have given depth to these proposals, grounding them in both our town's history and its potential for growth.

Finally, I would like to thank everyone who worked behind the scenes—whether gathering data, conducting research, or organizing meetings—your efforts have been crucial in bringing this work to life.

Together, we have created a roadmap for Joun's future that honors our heritage and inspires a brighter tomorrow. I am truly grateful to each of you for your contributions, enthusiasm, and dedication to this endeavor.

With sincere appreciation,

Dr Antoine J. Burkush, PhD

الشكر والتقدير

هذه المجموعة من المقترحات هي نتيجة رؤية مشتركة ورحلة تعاونية ، تسترشد بمدخلات وتفاني ورؤى عدد لا يحصى من الأفراد الذين يحملون جون قريبا من قلوبهم. لم يكن ذلك ممكنا بدون الدعم والمساهمات الثابتة من أعضاء المجتمع والخبراء وأصحاب المصلحة والقادة المحليين ، الذين قدم كل منهم وجهات نظره الفريدة إلى الطاولة.

أولا وقبل كل شيء، أعرب عن خالص امتناني لسكان جون، الذين كانت أصواتهم وأفكارهم وتطلعاتهم أساس هذا العمل. لقد كان استعدادك لمشاركة أفكارك وأحلامك لمدينتنا لا يقدر بثمن في تشكيل المقترحات التي تعكس حقا روح مجتمعنا وأهدافه. كانت مشاركتك في المناقشات والاستطلاعات والتجمعات المجتمعية شهادة على التزامك بمستقبل جون.

شكر خاص للذين كانت مساهماتهم مفيدة فى صقل رؤيتنا.

إلى القادة المحليين وأصحاب المصلحة الذين دافعوا عن هذا المشروع ، كان دعمكم مصدرا حيويا للتشجيع. لقد أعطت قيادتك وفهمك لتحديات وفرص جون الفريدة عمقا لهذه المقترحات ، مما جعلها راسخة في كل من تاريخ مدينتنا وإمكاناتها للنمو.

أخيرا ، أود أن أشكر كل من عمل وراء الكواليس - سواء في جمع البيانات أو إجراء البحوث أو تنظيم الاجتماعات - كانت جهودك حاسمة في إحياء هذا العمل.

معا ، أنشأنا خارطة طريق لمستقبل جون تكرم تراثنا وتلهم غدا أكثر إشراقا. أنا ممتن حقا لكل واحد منكم على مساهماتكم وحماسكم وتفانيكم في هذا المسعى.

مع خالص التقدير،

د. انطوان جان البرخش



مشاريع مبادرات شخصية "من أجل الصالح العام"

Joun Development Projects

"Pro Bono Publico"

Dr Antoine J. Burkush, PhD

رؤية واحدة، هوية واحدة، مجتمع واحد

Preface

In a world where rapid change is the new normal, the importance of strategic, sustainable, and community-centered development is paramount. Joun, with its rich cultural heritage, natural beauty, and resilient community, stands at a crossroads—one that presents both challenges and extraordinary opportunities. As we look toward Joun's future, it is essential that our plans honor the town's heritage, respond to today's needs, and set a course for future generations to thrive.

This series of proposals is the result of a deeply collaborative effort to envision Joun's path forward. Each plan reflects input from residents, local stakeholders, and community leaders, resulting in a shared vision that is both ambitious and respectful of our town's unique identity. These proposals encompass a comprehensive range of initiatives, from infrastructure and economic development to cultural preservation and environmental stewardship, with each component tailored to address Joun's specific strengths, challenges, and aspirations.

Our proposals emphasize a commitment to public infrastructure improvements, economic empowerment, environmental sustainability, and cultural continuity. From plans to enhance recreational facilities and community services to initiatives for sustainable tourism and green energy, each proposal aims to make Joun a model of progressive yet grounded development. The ultimate goal is to create a vibrant, inclusive, and resilient community—one that embodies the values, dreams, and talents of its people.

I extend my heartfelt gratitude to everyone who has contributed to this vision. Your dedication, ideas, and insight have been invaluable, illuminating the pathway to a future that aligns with Joun's core values while embracing growth and innovation. These proposals are an invitation to all residents of Joun to imagine, participate, and help build a community that harmonizes tradition with the possibilities of tomorrow.

As you review this collection, I encourage you to see not just plans, but a vision for what Joun can become. Let us move forward together, translating these ideas into action, and creating a brighter, thriving, and unified future for Joun.

With deep respect and optimism,

Dr Antoine J. Burkush, PhD

مقدمة

في عالم حيث التغيير السريع هو الوضع الطبيعي الجديد ، فإن أهمية التنمية الإستراتيجية والمستدامة التي تركز على المجتمع أمر بالغ الأهمية. تقف جون ، بتراثها الثقافي الغني وجمالها الطبيعي ومجتمعها المرن ، على مفترق طرق - مفترق طرق يمثل تحديات وفرصا غير عادية. بينما نتطلع إلى مستقبل جون ، من الضرورى أن تكرم خططنا تراث المدينة ، وتستجيب لاحتياجات اليوم ، وتضع مسارا للأجيال القادمة لتزدهر

هذه السلسلة من المقترحات هي نتيجة جهد تعاوني عميق لتصور مسار جون إلى الأمام. تعكس كل خطة مدخلات من السكان وأصحاب المصلحة المحليين وقادة المجتمع ، مما يؤدي إلى رؤية مشتركة طموحة . وتحترم الهوية الفريدة لمدينتنا. تشمل هذه المقترحات مجموعة شاملة من المبادرات ، من البنية التحتية والتنمية الاقتصادية إلى الحفاظ على الثقافة والإشراف البيئي ، مع تصميم كل مكون لمعالجة نقاط القوة والتحديات والتطلعات المحددة لجون.

تؤكد مقترحاتنا على الالتزام بتحسين البنية التحتية العامة ، والتمكين الاقتصادى ، والاستدامة البيئية ، والإستمرارية الثقافية. من خطط تعزيز المرافق الترفيهية والخدمات المجتمعية إلى مبادرات السياحة المستدامة والطاقة الخضراء ، يهدف كل اقتراح إلى جعل جون نموذجا للتنمية التقدمية والمرتكزة. الهدف النهائى هو إنشاء مجتمع نابض بالحياة وشامل ومرن - مجتمع يجسد قيم وأحلام ومواهب شعبه.

وأعرب عن خالص امتناني لكل من ساهم في هذه الرؤية. لقد كان تفانيك وأفكارك ورؤيتك لا تقدر بثمن ، مما يضىء الطريق إلى مستقبل يتماشى مع القيم الأساسية لجون مع احتضان النمو والابتكار. هذه المقترحات هي دعوة لجميع سكان جون للتخيل والمشاركة والمساعدة في بناء مجتمع ينسق التقاليد مع إمكانيات الغد

أثناء مراجعتك لهذه المجموعة ، أشجعك على رؤية ليس فقط الخطط ، ولكن رؤية لما يمكن أن يصبح عليه جون. دعونا نمضى قدما معا، ونترجم هذه الأفكار إلى أفعال، ونخلق مستقبلا أكثر إشراقا وازدهارا وموحدا لجون.

مع الاحترام العميق والتفاؤل،

د. انطوان جان البرخش

Proposal for Honey Production in Joun

PURPOSE OF THE DOCUMENT

The objective of the pre-feasibility study is primarily to facilitate potential entrepreneurs in project identification for investment. The project pre-feasibility may form the basis of an important investment decision and in order to serve this objective, the document/study covers various aspects of project concept development, start-up, production, marketing, finance and business management. The document also provides sectoral information, and international scenario, which have some bearing on the project itself.

The purpose of this document is to facilitate potential investors in Honey Production, Packaging & Marketing business by providing them a holistic as well as a micro view of business with the hope that such information as provided herein will help the potential investors in crucial investment decisions.

Apart from carefully studying the whole document one must consider critical aspects provided later on, which form basis of any Investment Decision.

ABOUT HONEY

Honey is a sweet, viscous food substance made by bees and some related insects. Bees produce honey from the sugary secretions of plants (floral nectar) or from secretions of other insects (such as honeydew), by regurgitation, enzymatic activity, and water evaporation. Bees store honey in wax structures called a honeycomb. The variety of honey produced by honey bees is the best-known, due to its worldwide commercial production and human consumption. Honey is collected from wild bee colonies, or from hives of domesticated bees, a practice known as beekeeping or apiculture.

Honey gets its sweetness from the monosaccharide's fructose and glucose, and has about the same relative sweetness as sucrose (granulated sugar). It has attractive chemical properties for baking and a distinctive flavour when used as a sweetener. Most microorganisms do not grow in honey, so sealed honey does not spoil, even after thousands of year.

Honey means the natural sweet substance produced by honey bees from the nectar of blossoms or from secretions of plants which honey bees collect, transform store in honey combs for ripening. It shall be free from any foreign matter such as mould, dirt, scum, pieces of beeswax, the fragments of bees and other insects and from any other extraneous matter. Honey is among the most popular and widely used sweetener with enormous health benefits. It is used by several cultures around the world serving as a base for many traditional medicines, especially in Ayurveda. It is used in strengthens immune system, preparing cosmetic products, health tonic and food processing industries for preparing different types of drinks, bakery products, sweets etc. Beekeeping is an ideal activity for development as a subsidiary occupation providing supplementary income. Beekeeping is feasible in areas where adequate bee flora available for a minimum period of 6 months. Honey produced by Indian hive bees is collected by modern extractor. The extracted honey contains hemophilic yeasts, which causes fermentation and destroy the quality of honey. To maintain the qualitative and quantitative value of honey the processing in modern Honey Processing plant is essential.

In short:

➤Natural sweet product produced by bees from the nectar plants (blossom honey) or from secretions of living parts of plants or secretion of insects (honeydew honey) Bees collect, deposit, dehydrate, store and leave in the honey comb to ripen and mature.

≻ The EU Directive defines honey as "The natural sweet substance produced by Apis mellifera ".

 \succ The EU definition states that honey is only honey when it is produced by Apis mellifera honeybees.

HONEY CATEGORIES

>Blossom honey is obtained predominantly from the nectar of flowers.

≻Honeydew honey is produced by bees after they collect 'honeydew' – secretions of insects belonging to the genus Rhynchota, which pierce plant cells, ingest plant sap and then secrete it again.

> Monofloral honey is where the bees have been foraging predominantly on one type of plant, and is named according to that plant. (> 45% pollen from one plant)

> Multifloral honey (also known as polyfloral) has several botanical sources, none of which is predominant,

>Extracted honey is the most basic and widespread hive product. It is obtained by centrifuging decapped broodless combs.

➤ Pressed Honey is honey obtained by pressing broodless combs with or without the application of moderate heat.

➤ Drained Honey is honey obtained by draining decapped broodless combs.

 \succ Comb Honey which is honey stored by bees in the cells of freshly built broodless combs and which is sold in sealed whole combs or sections of such combs.

>Chunk Honey which is honey containing one or more pieces of comb honey.

> Crystallized or Granulated Honey which is honey that has undergone a natural process of solidification as a result of glucose crystallization.

➤ Creamed (or creamy or set) Honey is honey which has a fine crystalline structure and which may have undergone a physical process to give it that structure and to make it easy to spread.

Historical Importance of Honey

Honey has historical importance since it is being used from pre-historic time as natural sweetener agent. With rising awareness on health benefits of honey and health consciousness among people across world, honey has gained importance in recent decades. Its use is not only limited to food for human consumption rather it is also being used in various industries such as- cosmetics, and medicines. This has also led to large consumer appeal. Honey products such as- wax, Bees Wax, Bee Venom, Propolis, Royal Jelly & Pollen has high demand in pharmaceutical industries. It also helps in generating substantial foreign exchange through export market due to its high demand at global level.



Formulation of Honey

Honey is produced by bees collecting nectar for use as sugars consumed to support metabolism of muscle activity during foraging or to be stored as a long-term food supply. During foraging, bee's access part of the nectar collected to support metabolic activity of flight muscles, with the majority of collected nectar destined for regurgitation, digestion, and storage as honey. In cold weather or when other food sources are scarce, adult and larval bees use stored honey as food. Bees are some of the few insects that can generate large amounts of body heat, thus the hive bees constantly regulate the hive temperature, either heating with their bodies or cooling with water evaporation, to maintain a fairly constant temperature in the honey-storage areas around 35 °C.

Important Uses of Honey

- The main uses of honey are in cooking, baking, desserts as a spread on bread or as an addition to various beverages.
- Honey has been used as a salve to heal burns and prevent infections for thousands of years.
- Honey can heal lesions from herpes is an effective topical treatment for both oral and genital herpes.

• Honey has a lower glycemic index than sugar, which means it won't spike your blood sugar levels the way sugar will. Honey also has a sweeter taste than sugar and may help you use less sweetener on foods. This makes honey a better option than sugar.

Promoting beekeeping projects as a source of livelihoods

According to FAO.org: There are many different entry points for projects to strengthen livelihoods with beekeeping, such as including trees for bees within planting schemes to improve pollination and increase crop harvests, assisting honey hunters through beekeeping or making and marketing honey wines or beeswax cosmetics. Beekeeping projects have been started in many developing countries and are frequently supported by international organizations, governments or NGOs. Beekeeping fits in well with other interventions and is often incorporated as one of a number implemented. Some minimum resources, however, should normally be available to people.

Natural resources: indigenous species

Beekeeping projects can improve the potential for beekeeping by planting melliferous vegetation. Indigenous honeybees have evolved and survived successfully under local conditions and will be better suited to them than introduced bees. The European honeybees introduced into many countries and African bees introduced into Central and South America currently form the basis of successful beekeeping industries.

Human resources: beekeeping skills, training and extension

Beekeeping is a widespread activity with a wealth of existing local knowledge and skills. The addition of a little technical information, however, can lead to greatly improved harvests of honey and beeswax. There are many ways to assist honey hunters or beekeepers to build on their resources to create more income by harvesting and processing honey more skillfully, and to obtain better prices by saving and selling beeswax and by making secondary products.

Beekeepers and trainers often lack appropriate training materials - most of the literature discusses keeping European bees in temperate zone conditions. Training is often theoretical rather than practical, placing emphasis on changing the type of hive used without providing practical guidance and follow up. New beekeepers need training in how to work with bees, how to maintain honey quality, how to separate honey from beeswax, how to render beeswax, how to manufacture secondary products and how to make beekeeping clothes and equipment.

Physical resources: equipment and transport

Limited access to transport is the main reason why beekeepers in remote areas receive the lowest prices for their products. Projects can do much to alleviate this problem. Rural people can find it difficult to obtain equipment, containers and packaging. The answer is not merely to donate the items but to train local people to make their own equipment and find access to good containers and packaging, and credit with which to acquire them.

The equipment needed for beekeeping can be simple: the humble plastic bucket is one of the most essential items. Recommending good-quality, lidded, stackable plastic buckets may not bring great professional kudos to the beekeeping expert, but such buckets are useful for beekeepers living in remote places who need to keep their honey clean until they are able to sell it. Honey of excellent quality can be harvested as long as clean buckets are available, along with cotton or baskets for sieving honey and containers for melting wax and packaging the honey and other products.

The appropriate equipment for harvesting and processing honey and beeswax depends on the quantities to be processed and the type of product required. In some areas, beekeeping using traditional local hives is practiced on a large scale and justifies the provision of relatively sophisticated, large-scale processing equipment capable of dealing with honey in bulk. Where a cooperative has established a honey-packing unit, a few specialized items often have to be imported, such as effective taps for use on honey containers, special gauze for filtering honey and refractometers to measure water content.

Financial resources: credit

In poor societies, lack of credit is a major constraint to everyone concerned with selling and buying honey. Beekeepers with honey to sell expect to receive cash from honeycollection centres or private-sector traders; otherwise they prefer to sell their honey in small quantities in markets to obtain an instant but low cash return. People buying honey need access to credit during the honey season. Lack of credit leads to insignificant volumes of honey being available for sale, no interest from traders and a stagnant industry.

Social resources: sector support and marketing

In poor countries, there are usually government officers responsible for training and extension in beekeeping. Often, however, they have little relevant training and lack access to transport and other resources. National policies are needed to promote apiculture and protect pollinators. A national NGO is a considerable advantage and able to represent the interests of beekeepers, establish communication between producers and traders and facilitate marketing.

In many developing countries, much can be done to increase retail honey sales, for example, by improving and diversifying packaging, especially for small volume markets. Marketing initiatives can involve promoting honey in the media, interacting with consumers and traders to increase honey consumption and sales, and creating links with packaging suppliers. Honey consumption increases according to living standards; people are keen to buy honey when it is well presented and they have more confidence in the product.

The first aim of a marketing initiative should be import replacement, which means ensuring that local honey is packaged and presented as attractively as the imported brands. Only when the local need for honey is satisfied should export be planned, as inexpensive honey is readily available on the world market. In some countries, producers have benefited from having their honey or beeswax certified as organic or produced according to fair-trade criteria. This type of certification can help small-scale producers to find niche markets that pay premium prices. Honey export to the European Community requires expert knowledge of trade rules and import requirements (Bradbear, 2001).

Market Analysis



The Global Market

The global market size of honey is around US\$ 8.4 billion, and it is projected to reach US\$ 10.3 billion by 2025, with an expected CAGR of around 4.8%. Globally 1,779.6 metric tons of honey is produced. China produces almost 28% of world's honey, followed by Turkey (5.9%), Iran (4.5%) and US (4.1%). India is the 6th largest producer of honey, accounting for 3.5% of global production.

As per the information available from Agricultural & Processed Food Products Export Development Authority, India has exported 51547.31 MT of Natural Honey to the world for the worth of Rs. 653.58 crore/ 101.32 USD Million during the year of 2017-18 and the Major Export Destinations (2017-18) are USA, Saudi Arab, UAE, Canada and Qatar.

As consumers across the globe are becoming health conscious, they are increasingly inclined towards healthy and natural alternatives over artificial sweeteners. Burgeoning awareness about the benefits of honey is providing an impetus to the global honey market.

The Market in Lebanon

According to anera.org: Beekeeping in Lebanon is a growing industry with significant potential. Here are some key points:

Current State of Beekeeping

- Ideal Habitat: Lebanon's varied terrain and distinct flora provide an ideal habitat for bees, making the country a major supplier of honey and other bee products

- Challenges: The industry faces challenges such as a lack of modern equipment, climate change, and pesticide use, which have led to a decline in bee populations

Support and Development

- Training Programs: Organizations like Anera, with the support of UNICEF, are promoting sustainable practices and training young beekeepers to adapt to changing conditions

- Collective Beekeeping: Initiatives like the By Bee farm in South Lebanon are fostering solidarity among beekeepers and promoting collective efforts to improve production

Market Potential

- Exports: Lebanon exported around 243,000 kilograms of honey in 2021, indicating a strong market potential

- Local Success: Beekeeping is providing livelihoods for many, including women who have found success in the industry despite the financial crisis

Value Chain Analysis

- Support Projects: Projects like the "Support to Olive and Beekeeping Cooperatives in Lebanon" by ACTED, in partnership with SHEILD and the Akkar Network for Development, are enhancing the value chain and market access for beekeepers.

Community and Environmental Impact

- Ecosystem Services: Beekeeping supports local biodiversity and pollination services, which are crucial for agriculture and the environment.

- Community Engagement: Beekeeping projects often involve community engagement and education, promoting awareness about the importance of bees.

Lebanon's beekeeping industry has a promising future with the right support and sustainable practices.

Some Specifics for The Beekeeping Project

Site Selection

- Location: Choose a site with a mix of flowering plants that bloom throughout the year. This ensures a continuous nectar and pollen source for the bees.

- Proximity: Ensure the site is close enough to water sources but away from high-traffic areas and pesticide-treated fields.

Hive Setup

- Hive Types:

- Langstroth Hive: Most common, easy to manage, and good for honey production.

- Top-Bar Hive: Simpler design, promotes natural bee behavior, but may yield less honey.

- Warre Hive: Mimics natural bee environment, requires less intervention.

- Hive Placement: Position hives facing southeast to catch the morning sun, at least 1 meter apart to avoid confusion among bees, and slightly elevated to protect from ground moisture.

Bee Acquisition

- Nucleus Colony (Nuc): Consists of a small, established colony with a queen, workers, and brood. Easier for beginners.

- Package Bees: A box of bees with a queen, usually cheaper but takes longer to establish.

- Local vs. Imported Bees: Local bees are better adapted to your climate and may have better survival rates.

Management Practices

- Feeding:

- Sugar Syrup: Provide 1:1 sugar-water solution during dearth periods (when flowers are scarce).

- Pollen Patties: Supplement when pollen sources are low, especially in early spring.

- Pest and Disease Control:

- Varroa Mites: Monitor and treat regularly using organic methods like powdered sugar dusting or essential oils.

- Nosema: Preventive treatments with fumagillin or natural alternatives.
- Hive Beetles: Use beetle traps and maintain strong colonies to deter infestations.
- Swarm Management:
- Splitting Hives: Create new colonies by dividing strong hives.
- Adding Supers: Provide additional space to prevent overcrowding.

Harvesting

- Timing: Harvest honey when most cells are capped (indicating maturity). This is typically in late spring to early summer.

- Method:

- Honey Extractor: A centrifugal machine that extracts honey without destroying the comb.

- Crush and Strain: A simpler method where comb is crushed and honey is strained through a sieve.

Marketing and Sales

- Product Range:

- Honey: Different varieties based on floral sources (e.g., wildflower, clover).
- Beeswax: For candles, cosmetics, and other products.
- Propolis and Royal Jelly: High-value health supplements.

- Branding: Develop a compelling brand that highlights the purity and sustainability of your products. Use eco-friendly packaging.

- Sales Channels:
- Local Markets: Farmers' markets, health food stores, and local shops.
- Online Sales: Through your website or platforms like Etsy.
- Wholesale: Supply to restaurants, bakeries, and cosmetic companies.

Community Engagement

- Workshops and Tours: Host educational sessions to raise awareness about beekeeping and the importance of bees.

- School Programs: Partner with local schools to provide beekeeping demonstrations and educational materials.

Sustainability and Certification

- Sustainable Practices:
- Avoid Pesticides: Use natural pest control methods.
- Promote Biodiversity: Plant a variety of flowering plants to support bee health.
- Certifications:
- Organic Certification: Verify that your practices are chemical-free.

- Fair Trade Certification: Ensure fair wages and working conditions for anyone involved in your beekeeping project.

Monitoring and Evaluation

- Performance Metrics:

- Hive Health: Regular inspections for pests, diseases, and general hive activity.
- Honey Production: Track the amount of honey harvested each season.
- Sales Performance: Monitor sales volume and revenue.
- Continuous Improvement:
- Feedback: Collect feedback from customers and local community members.

- Adaptation: Adjust your practices based on performance data and feedback to improve efficiency and sustainability.

This should give you a solid framework for setting up and managing a successful beekeeping project in Joun.

Business Plan for the Beekeeping Project in Joun

Executive Summary

- Mission: To produce high-quality honey and other bee products using sustainable and eco-friendly practices.

- Vision: To become a leading provider of premium bee products in Lebanon and the surrounding region.

- Goals: Establish the apiary, achieve high yields, and expand market reach within the first three years.

Market Analysis

- Industry Overview: The global demand for honey and bee products is growing, driven by health-conscious consumers and the popularity of natural remedies.

- Target Market: Local consumers, health food stores, restaurants, and international markets.

- Competitive Analysis: Identify key competitors, their strengths, weaknesses, and market gaps. Emphasize the unique selling points of your products, such as organic certification and local production.

Business Model

- Production Process: From hive setup and management to harvesting and processing honey and other bee products.

- Sourcing: Use local resources, including organic feed and natural pest control methods, to support the local ecosystem and ensure high-quality products.

- Technology: Implement modern beekeeping techniques and sustainable practices to optimize production.

Marketing and Sales Strategy

- Branding: Develop a brand that emphasizes quality, sustainability, and local heritage.

- Promotion: Utilize social media, local events, and collaborations with chefs and restaurants to promote your products.

- Distribution: Establish sales channels, including direct sales, partnerships with retailers, and online sales. Explore export opportunities to international markets.

Financial Plan

- Startup Costs: Land acquisition, hive setup, bee colonies, equipment, and initial marketing.

- Revenue Projections: Estimate annual revenue based on market prices and expected yield.

- Funding: Secure funding through government grants, loans, and private investors.

Operations Plan

- Site Selection: Choose regions with suitable climate and abundant flowering plants.

- Hive Setup: Implement best practices for hive placement, feeding, and pest management.

- Harvesting and Processing: Ensure timely and careful harvesting, followed by proper extraction, filtering, and packaging of honey.

Risk Assessment

- Market Risks: Price fluctuations and competition. Mitigate by establishing strong market linkages and diversifying sales channels.

- Climate Risks: Adverse weather conditions. Implement measures such as providing water sources and ensuring hive protection.

- Operational Risks: Pests and diseases. Monitor regularly and use organic pest control methods.

Sustainability and Certification

- Sustainable Practices: Implement water conservation, organic farming, and energyefficient practices.

- Certifications: Obtain relevant certifications (e.g., organic, fair trade) to enhance marketability.

Monitoring and Evaluation

- Performance Metrics: Track key performance indicators such as hive health, honey production, and sales.

- Continuous Improvement: Regularly review and refine beekeeping practices, pest management, and marketing strategies based on feedback and performance data.

This business plan provides a comprehensive framework to ensure the success of your beekeeping project in Joun.

Risk Assessment

Let's dive into a detailed risk assessment for your beekeeping project in Joun:

Market Risks

- Price Fluctuations: Honey prices can vary due to changes in supply and demand. To mitigate this, diversify your sales channels and establish long-term contracts with buyers.

- Competition: An increasing number of beekeepers could impact market share. Focus on differentiating your products through quality, unique flavors, and certifications.

Climate Risks

- Weather Conditions: Extreme weather, like heavy rain or drought, can affect bee activity and nectar availability. Implement measures like providing water sources and sheltering hives during adverse weather.

- Climate Change: Long-term climate changes could alter blooming periods and nectar sources. Adapt by planting a variety of flowering plants that bloom throughout the year.

Operational Risks

- Pests and Diseases: Common threats include Varroa mites, Nosema, and hive beetles. Regular hive inspections, organic treatments, and maintaining strong, healthy colonies can help manage these risks.

- Swarming: Bees swarming and leaving the hive can reduce productivity. Prevent swarming by providing enough space and managing hive conditions effectively.

Financial Risks

- Initial Investment: High initial costs for setting up hives, acquiring bees, and purchasing equipment. Secure diverse funding sources such as grants, loans, and investors.

- Cash Flow Management: Poor cash flow can lead to financial difficulties. Maintain a financial cushion, and regularly review expenses and revenue to ensure sustainability.

Supply Chain Risks

- Supply Chain Disruptions: Delays or shortages in acquiring necessary supplies, such as bee feed or equipment. Build relationships with reliable suppliers and keep a reserve of essential supplies.

- Transportation: Honey and bee products must be transported carefully to maintain quality. Invest in proper packaging and reliable transportation methods.

Regulatory Risks

- Compliance: Changes in regulations related to food safety, labeling, and environmental practices. Stay informed about regulatory changes and ensure compliance with all relevant laws and certifications.

- Certifications: Obtaining and maintaining certifications like organic or fair trade can be challenging but essential for market access. Allocate resources for the certification process and regular audits.

Technological Risks

- Equipment Failure: Malfunctioning equipment can disrupt operations. Regular maintenance, investing in high-quality equipment, and having backup systems can mitigate this risk.

- Technological Advancements: Keeping up with advancements in beekeeping technology can be costly. Stay updated on new technologies and adopt those that offer significant benefits.

Social and Community Risks

- Community Perception: Negative perception of beekeeping due to fears of bee stings or environmental concerns. Engage with the community through education and outreach programs to build positive relationships.

- Labor Availability: Difficulty in finding skilled labor during peak seasons. Develop good relationships with local labor sources and offer fair wages and training programs.

By identifying and addressing these risks, you can enhance the resilience and success of your beekeeping project in Joun.

Key Challenges

Some key challenges you might face with your beekeeping project in Joun:

1. Climate Conditions

- Extreme Weather: Heavy rain, wind, and temperature fluctuations can affect bee activity and hive health. It's crucial to provide adequate shelter and monitor weather patterns.

2. Pests and Diseases

- Varroa Mites: A common and destructive pest that can weaken and kill bee colonies. Regular inspections and organic treatments are necessary.

- Nosema: A fungal infection that affects the digestive system of bees. Preventive measures and treatments are needed to keep it at bay.

- Hive Beetles: These can damage comb, honey, and pollen. Effective traps and maintaining strong colonies can help control them.

3. Swarming

- Loss of Bees: Swarming can lead to the loss of a significant portion of your bees, reducing productivity. Managing hive space and regular inspections can prevent this.

4. Market Risks

- Price Fluctuations: Honey prices can vary, impacting profitability. Diversifying products (e.g., beeswax, propolis) and establishing stable market channels can help.

- Competition: Rising competition from other beekeepers may affect market share. Differentiating your products through quality and unique selling points is key.

5. Financial Constraints

- Initial Investment: High startup costs for hives, bees, and equipment. Securing diverse funding sources and managing finances carefully is essential.

- Cash Flow Management: Inconsistent cash flow can lead to financial strain. Planning and maintaining a financial cushion can mitigate this risk.

6. Regulatory Challenges

- Compliance: Keeping up with local and international regulations on honey production and food safety. Staying informed and ensuring compliance is crucial.

7. Labor Availability

- Skilled Labor: Finding skilled workers during peak seasons can be challenging. Building relationships with local labor sources and offering fair wages can help.

8. Community Perception

- Bee Stings: Fear of bee stings can create negative perceptions. Educating the community and promoting the importance of bees can build positive relationships.

9. Technological Risks

- Equipment Failure: Malfunctioning or outdated equipment can disrupt operations. Regular maintenance and investing in quality equipment are necessary.

10. Supply Chain Disruptions

- Delays: Delays in acquiring necessary supplies can impact operations. Building relationships with reliable suppliers and keeping a reserve of essential supplies can mitigate this risk.

Addressing these challenges proactively will enhance the resilience and success of your beekeeping project.

Marketing Plan

Let's craft a dynamic marketing plan for your beekeeping project in Joun:

1. Branding

- Unique Identity: Develop a brand that emphasizes quality, sustainability, and local heritage. Create a memorable logo and packaging design that reflects these values.

- Storytelling: Share the story behind your honey and bee products—how they're produced, the care that goes into each harvest, and the benefits of choosing your product.

2. Online Presence

- Website: Build an attractive, user-friendly website that showcases your honey and other bee products, the production process, and offers an online store for direct sales.

- Social Media: Leverage platforms like Instagram, Facebook, and TikTok to engage with consumers. Post high-quality images, behind-the-scenes content, recipes, and health tips.

3. Content Marketing

- Blog: Start a blog on your website to discuss topics related to beekeeping, the health benefits of honey, recipes, and sustainability practices. This will help drive traffic to your site and establish your brand as an authority in the market.

- Videos: Create engaging videos showcasing your beekeeping process, the hives, and customer testimonials. Share these on your website, social media, and YouTube.

4. Community Engagement

- Local Events: Participate in local food festivals, farmers' markets, and community events to promote your bee products and engage directly with consumers.

- Workshops and Tours: Host workshops and tours at your apiary to educate consumers about beekeeping and allow them to experience your products firsthand.

5. Partnerships

- Restaurants and Chefs: Partner with local chefs and restaurants to feature your honey in their dishes. Offer them exclusive deals and marketing support.

- Retailers: Collaborate with supermarkets, health food stores, and specialty retailers to stock your honey and other bee products. Provide promotional materials and support to help drive sales.

6. Influencer Marketing

- Food Bloggers and Influencers: Work with food bloggers and social media influencers to review and promote your honey and bee products. Send them samples and invite them to visit your apiary.

- Brand Ambassadors: Develop a brand ambassador program with local foodies and health enthusiasts who can advocate for your products.

7. Public Relations

- Press Releases: Distribute press releases to local and international media outlets announcing the launch of your beekeeping project, new products, and significant milestones.

- Media Coverage: Reach out to food and lifestyle magazines, newspapers, and TV shows to feature your story and products.

8. Customer Engagement

- Newsletter: Create a newsletter to keep your customers informed about new products, special offers, and company news.

- Customer Loyalty Programs: Implement a loyalty program to reward repeat customers with discounts, exclusive offers, and early access to new products.

9. Sales Channels

- Direct Sales: Sell directly to consumers via your website, local markets, and farm shops.

- Wholesale: Offer your products in bulk to restaurants, hotels, and food manufacturers.

- Export: Develop an export strategy to introduce your bee products to international markets. Attend international food trade shows and connect with distributors.

10. Advertising

- Online Advertising: Use Google Ads and social media ads to target potential customers searching for premium honey and related products.

- Local Advertising: Utilize local newspapers, radio, and outdoor advertising to reach consumers in your region.

11. Customer Feedback

- Feedback Systems: Set up systems for collecting customer feedback and addressing complaints. Use feedback to continuously improve product quality and service.

By implementing this comprehensive marketing plan, you can effectively promote your bee products and build a loyal customer base.

Packaging

Packaging is key to ensuring your honey and bee products remain high-quality and appealing. Here's a detailed plan for packaging:

1. Containers

- Material: Use food-safe, airtight containers to preserve the quality and flavor of the honey. Glass jars are preferred for their durability and visual appeal, but high-quality plastic containers are also an option.

- Sizes: Offer various sizes to cater to different customer needs, such as small jars for gifts and larger jars for regular consumers.

2. Labels

- Design: Create visually appealing labels that reflect your brand's identity. Include your logo, brand colors, and unique design elements.

- Information: Ensure the label includes essential information such as:

- Product name
- Net weight
- Ingredients (if applicable)
- Harvest date
- Best before date
- Certification logos (e.g., organic, fair trade)
- Contact information

- Nutritional information (optional)

- Regulations: Ensure labels comply with local and international labeling regulations.

3. Safety Seals

- Tamper-Evident Seals: Use tamper-evident seals to protect the integrity of your product and provide assurance to customers about its safety.

4. Packaging Materials

- Eco-Friendly Options: Use sustainable and eco-friendly packaging materials to appeal to environmentally conscious consumers. Consider recyclable or biodegradable options.

- Cushioning: Use protective cushioning materials to prevent damage during transport, such as bubble wrap, biodegradable peanuts, or shredded paper.

5. Packaging Design

- Gift Packaging: Offer special gift packaging for holidays and special occasions. This can include decorative boxes or bags and can help increase sales during peak seasons.

- Bulk Packaging: Provide bulk packaging options for restaurants, hotels, and food manufacturers.

6. Logistics

- Packaging for Transport: Ensure your packaging is sturdy enough to withstand the rigors of transport. Use strong boxes and secure the jars inside to prevent movement.

- Labeling for Shipping: Clearly label each package with the destination address and include any necessary handling instructions (e.g., "Fragile" or "Keep Upright").

7. Branding

- Consistency: Ensure that all packaging reflects your brand consistently across different products and sizes. This builds brand recognition and trust among consumers.

By focusing on these aspects, you can create attractive and secure packaging that enhances the appeal and quality of your bee products.

The Honey Processing Steps

Here's a detailed look at the honey processing steps for your beekeeping operation in Joun:

1. Harvesting Honeycombs

- Timing: Harvest honeycombs when most cells are capped, indicating the honey is ripe and moisture content is low.

- Method: Carefully remove frames from the hives. Use a bee brush to gently sweep off bees.

2. Honey Extraction

- Uncapping: Use an uncapping knife or fork to remove the wax cappings from the honeycomb cells. Collect the cappings in a container as they can be processed for beeswax.

- Extraction: Place the uncapped frames in a honey extractor, which uses centrifugal force to spin the honey out of the combs. Ensure the extractor is clean and food-safe.

3. Filtering

- Initial Strain: Pour the extracted honey through a coarse mesh strainer or cheesecloth to remove large particles and wax bits.

- Fine Strain: Pass the honey through a finer mesh strainer or filter to remove smaller particles and impurities.

4. Settling and Bottling

- Settling Tank: Allow the strained honey to sit in a settling tank for a few days. Air bubbles and any remaining impurities will rise to the top and can be skimmed off.

- Bottling: Transfer the honey into sterilized jars or bottles. Use food-safe containers and seal them tightly to prevent contamination. Label each container with details like the harvest date and type of honey.

5. Packaging

- Labeling: Ensure each jar has a clear, attractive label that meets regulatory requirements. Include information about the type of honey, weight, and any certifications (e.g., organic).

- Packaging: Package the jars in sturdy boxes for transport. Use cushioning materials to protect the jars from breaking during shipping.

6. Quality Control

- Testing: Regularly test honey for quality parameters like moisture content, purity, and flavor. Use accredited laboratories for testing.

- Storage: Store the honey in a cool, dry place away from direct sunlight. Proper storage ensures the honey maintains its quality and shelf life.

7. By-Products Processing

- Beeswax: Melt and filter the collected wax cappings to produce clean beeswax. This can be used to make candles, cosmetics, or sold as a raw product.

- Propolis and Royal Jelly: Harvest and process propolis and royal jelly separately. These can be sold as health supplements or used in various products.

By following these steps, you can ensure that your honey is processed efficiently and maintains high quality.

Manufacturing Process

The industry of honey is not a simple sequential chain of processing operations, although the normal consumer may consider it in this way, at first sight. It should be noted that each processing step, from the initial extraction to the packaging of the final food product, is the answer to peculiar problems concerning the physicochemical and biological features of different honeys.

In general, the following integrated steps are given below:



After the initial harvest, the material (e.g. honeycombs, frames) is introduced into the so-called honey extractor: a container able to remove honey by means of the centrifugal force. The operation has to be carried out into special rooms, with possibility of heating. At the exit from the extractor, the honey is (a) collected by gravity in tanks placed often

on the floor (wax is separated from honey) and (b) sent to the decanters with the aid of pumps from the same floor. The extraction must be performed by a desired degree of purification with the aim of eliminating wax particles and air bubbles, which are possibly mixed with honey during extraction. The purification is carried out with two different techniques: decanting and filtration. By the safety viewpoint, it should also be considered that extraction procedure (with the collection and other processing steps) may affect negatively the quality of produced honeys, with special reference to honey for medical purposes. Consequently, physicochemical and microbiological features of the final product can be assured on condition that a certain number of precautionary measures are taken before the final commercialization.

The processed honey is immediately bottled in clean wide mouthed bottles. It is then sealed by PP Caps. Bottles are wiped dry and labelled. Filled, sealed & labeled bottles are then packed in labeled cardboard boxes.

Flow of Honey Processing

- Harvesting and Transport of Raw Honey Liquefaction
- Straining and Filtration
- Moisture Reduction and Pasteurization
- Cooling, Bottling, and Labelling

HONEY PROCESSING

> Honey is a natural and almost untreated food produced by bees. Honey is therefore highly regarded by consumers as an authentic, naturally pure and healthy product.

≻Thus, the honey processing / packaging is reduced only to the careful heating of raw honey for :

- ≻Liquefaction
- ≻Filtration
- >Moisture control (if unripe honey harvested)
- ≻Pasteurization
- Packaging

THERMAL PROCESSING OF HONEY

>The thermal processing of honey is carried out with two stages .

> First, honey is heated at approximately 55°C to ensure easiness for handling (liquefaction process).

➤ Secondly liquefied honey is subjected to more higher temperature at approximately 80°C to destroy yeasts and dissolve crystallization nuclei (pasteurization process).

LIQUEFACTION

>According to the Codex Alimentarius and other honey regulations it is forbidden to heat honey as to impair significantly its quality.

>Liquefaction should be done in such a way to minimize the heat damage to honey.

>Liquefaction depends on the concentration of glucose in the honey and crystal form.

> Uncontrolled heating alters the parameters such as Hydroxymethylfurfural (HMF) content and diastase activity unfavourably.

LIQUEFACTION

>According to the Codex Alimentarius and other honey regulations it is forbidden to heat honey as to impair significantly its quality.

>Liquefaction should be done in such a way to minimize the heat damage to honey.

>Liquefaction depends on the concentration of glucose in the honey and crystal form.

>Uncontrolled heating alters the parameters such as Hydroxy- methylfurfural (HMF) content and diastase activity unfavourably.

DIFFERENT MEANS OF HONEY HEATING FOR LIQUIFACTION

CONVENTIONAL JACKETS

> A second shell is installed over a portion of the vessel, creating an annular space within which cooling or heating medium flows.

≻A simple conventional jacket, with no internal components, is generally very inefficient for heat transfer.

> The flow media(water) has an extremely low velocity resulting in a low heat transfer coefficient.

 \succ Heaters are installed outside the double jacketed vat for heating the circulating medium.

≻For uniform heating ,stirrer is compulsory to stir honey regularly to prevent its overheating along the walls of jacket.

 \succ Due to practical reasons, heating in water baths is used in recipients of up to 25 kg size.

>Heating by air is also widely used in honey industry.

 \succ When heating greater amounts of honey, air circulation should be used to prevent overheating.

>IMMERSION HEATERS can be placed on the granulated honey, which progressively sink upon honey melting.

> High-quality food-grade stainless steel immersion heater works great in combination with different capacity stainless steel honey storage tanks.

≻Honey can be liquefied by placing the vessels on electric plates. This type of heating is widely used by small beekeepers and NOT RECOMMENDED.

STRAINING AND FILTRATION

> According to codex, Honey which has been filtered in such a way as to result in the significant removal of pollen shall be designated filtered honey.

➤ According to European Directive, filtered honey is obtained by removing foreign inorganic or organic matter in such a way as to result in the significant removal of pollen.

➤ According to USDA Grading Standards for extracted honey, filtered honey is honey that has been filtered to the extent that all or most of the fine particles, pollen grains, air bubbles, and other materials normally found in suspension have been removed.

 \succ The straining operation to remove suspended solids (including large wax particles) is carried out either manually or by mechanical means.

 \succ The method and the equipment used for straining depend on the size of the operation.

> In small-scale operations, straining is done using cloth or nylon bags, which are frequently cleaned to remove the suspended particles.

>In large-scale operations, the straining operation is combined with the preheating (up to 40° C) operation in a jacketed tank fitted with a stirrer.

FILTRATION

> The strained honey is further processed using pressure filters. Typically a polypropylene micro filter of 80 µm is used as a filter medium.

> The honey temperature is maintained between 50–55°C, which prevents the melting of the beeswax.

➤ Large-scale processors subject honey to coarse filtration, centrifugal clarification, fine filtration, and blending, prior to filling.

 \succ The filtration should be done carefully so that required pollen count in the honey must be retained.

≻ The various types of filtration units which are available are filter press, sparkle filters etc.

REASON TO REDUCE MOISTURE IN HONEY

>Moisture is one of the most important parameter of honey quality.

 \succ Most of the extracted honeys are having the higher moisture than the prescribed standards because of extraction of unripened honey.

≻The amount of water present in honey determines its stability against fermentation and granulation .

 \succ Honey having high water content ferments easily with time. So, it is necessary to process the honey by subjecting it to thermal treatment to prevent fermentation by sugar tolerant yeasts .

> Treatment in a closed system minimizes losses of volatile aroma during heating.

MOISTURE REDUCTION EQUIPMENT IN HONEY

 \succ Dehumidifier is a tool used to control the amount of water vapored in a room. This machine can be either portably or permanently installed in a room.

> Dehumidifier can reduce the relative humidity (RH) level at honey dryer room. The temperature used is usually around 45 °C, but the drying time is relatively very long.

> Honey dehumidifier was designed for the small beekeeper who does not need to work large quantities of the product..

 \succ Evaporation is a technique used to evaporate water in a tube by using a pressure below 1 atm or in a vacuum condition. Furthermore, water can evaporate at temperatures less than 100 °C.

≻Gill et al. (2015) developed a small scale honey dehydrator for Moisture reduction.

>Hot water is discharged in a water jacket around the honey pot to heat the honey.

 \succ The heated honey pumped through a filter with 122 holes uniform in size, 0.5 cm diameter to form a honey stream through which the drying air passes to remove the honey's moisture content.

≻The honey flow helps them to increasing the honey's surface to be exposed with the air.

> The maximum drying speed per square meter of honey exposed to drying air at 40°C is 197 g/ hour-m2 while the minimum result (74.8 g/ hour-m2) corresponds to air drying at room temperature 8 -17°C.

PASTEURIZATION OF HONEY

≻Honey can be consumed pasteurized or not.

➤ Honey is low in humidity and high in acidity, which means that bacteria cannot survive in it.

➤ Pasteurization could not overcome the problem of Clostridium botulinum in honey.(explained in next slides)

≻Pasteurization of honey reduces the chance of fermentation and also delays granulation.

 \succ Different Temperature and Time combinations are suggested. Heating the honey to 63°C for 30 minutes or 65.5°C for 30 minutes or temperature be brought to 77° C momentarily and followed by the rapid cooling.

PROBLEM OF Clostridium botulinum IN HONEY

≻Very Young children or those with compromised immune systems should consume only pasteurized honey.

 \succ This is because there are a small number of cases each year where spores of Clostridium botulinum found in honey have been responsible for botulism poisoning.

➤ According to the U.S. National Library of Medicine, approximately 110 cases of botulism poisoning occur each year in the United States, mostly from improperly canned food, corn syrup, and honey.

>About 90% of these cases occur in children under six months old.

LOSTRIDIUM BOTULINUM

➤ Although the spores of Clostridium botulinum cannot grow or make toxin in the acidic environment of honey, they survive in a resting state. If they are eaten by an infant, the spores can grow, reproduce, and make toxins while living in the baby's intestinal tract. The toxins are then absorbed into the child's body and can cause illness.

➢Both the actual Clostridium botulinum bacteria and the toxins it produces are easily destroyed by boiling for several minutes or by holding them at lower temperatures for longer times. The spores, on the other hand, are extremely resistant. Pressure cooking at 250°F (121° C) for three minutes will kill the spores, as will other combinations of temperature, pressure, time, and acidity.

≻The common honey pasteurization process is much less rigorous and could not possibly kill the spores responsible for infant botulism.

TECHNIQUES USED AT LAB SCALE

- ≻Infrared heat processing of honey.
- ≻Microwave heat processing of honey
- ≻Ultrasound processing
- ≻Membrane processing of honey

BOTTLING

> Depending on the market requirement, honey may be bottled directly into small containers for retail sale or into large drums for storage or export to another countries.

➤In an effort to appeal to a wide range of consumers, honey is packaged in containers of many different sizes and styles. These include glass, plastic containers, honey tubs, or even squeeze bottles, ≻Like most aspects of honey processing, bottling can involve automation in large operations, or manual labour such as a hand valve on a plastic pail in smaller operations.

➤ Presence of air bubbles in the packaging containers can provoke nucleation and crystallization of honey. The filling of honey in the bottles is normally done at the high temperature.

≻ Filling at higher temperatures eliminates air bubbles and avoids air incorporation during packing due to low viscosity.

LABELLING

≻The label on a honey container in a retail outlet should include the word "Honey" or, possibly, an indication of a floral source, such as "Mustard Honey."

 \succ It also needs to state the net weight, the name and address of the honey dealer and the FSSAI registration number of the packer, as well as the nutrition facts table.

> The label should also identify the country of origin and indicate whether the honey is creamed, liquid or pasteurized.

> Honey sold at a Apiary or farmers' market does not need to meet the same labelling requirements because it's usually coming directly from the producer.



PROJECT COMPONENTS

Land & Building

The approximate total area required for complete factory setup is 3000-4000 Sq. ft. approximately smooth production including storage area.

Water Treatment unit	Water treatment plant and system operators run the equipment, control the processes, and monitor the plants that treat water to make it safe to drink.	
Boiler	It's a steam generating equipment which along with its accompanying systems generates & delivers steam at required temperature & pressure.	
S.S. Tank	It's a stainless-steel tank used to store given liquid & particulate solid.	
Jacketed	a jacketed vessel is a container that is	
Storage Tank	designed for	
Inner	controlling temperature of its contents, by using a cooling or heating "jacket" around the vessel through which a cooling or heating fluid is circulated.	JACKETED TANK

Semi- Automatic Single Head Machine	To fill viscous products, I Premade Pouches/Jars/Containers with piston operated filling system. Model able single filling station machine with adjustable tray. Feeding System: Volumetric Piston Operated filling system Production Speed: 8 to 20 fill/min (depends on materials) Filling Range: +/- 2-3 gms No. of filling counter: Adjustable screw system AirCompressor-3.0 HP	
Bottling plant (including bottle washer, filter, crown corking m/c & sterilizer	This is an entire system of machines used to wash, dry, fill, cap, sterilize & package bottles.	
Testing equipment	There are different equipment's used to test quality of final product like lactometer, gravity meter etc.	
Weighing balance	It's a simple weight measuring device use to determine weight of given object using standard weights.	

Power Requirement

The borrower shall require power load of 30 KW which shall be applied with Power Corporation. However, for standby power arrangement the borrower shall purchase DG Set.

Manpower Requirement

18 Manpower are required for the Honey Processing Unit. Includes:

- 1 Plant Operator
- 4 Skilled Labour
- 8 Unskilled Labour
- 4 Administrative Staffs 1 Accountant

STANDARDS FORMING AGENCIES CODEX, EU COUNCIL DIRECTIVES

≻ The Codex standard for honey adopted by the Codex Alimentarius Commission (revised 2001), has voluntary application and serves in many cases as a basis for National Legislation.

➤The European Council issued Directive 2001/110/EC (EC, 2001), amended 2014/63/EU (EU, 2014) that laid down the production and trading parameters of honey within the Member States of the EU

LICENSE & APPROVALS

- Obtain the GST registration.
- Additionally, obtain the Udyog Aadhar registration Number.
- Fire/pollution license as required.
- FSSAI License
- Factory License
- Choice of a Brand Name of the product and secure the name with Trademark if required.

Detailed staffing plan for your beekeeping project in Joun:

Key Roles and Responsibilities

- Beekeeping Manager: Oversees all operations, from hive setup to honey extraction. Ensures all activities comply with quality and safety standards.

- Beekeepers: Responsible for daily hive management, including feeding, pest control, and monitoring hive health. Conduct regular inspections and maintain records.

- Pest and Disease Control Specialist: Focuses on managing pests and diseases using organic and sustainable methods.

- Marketing and Sales Manager: Develops and implements marketing strategies, manages sales channels, and builds relationships with retailers and distributors.

- Quality Control Specialist: Ensures all products meet high-quality standards. Manages honey extraction and processing, conducts regular quality checks.

- Logistics and Distribution Coordinator: Handles the storage, packaging, and transportation of bee products. Ensures timely delivery to markets and customers.

- Administrative Assistant: Manages paperwork, scheduling, and communication. Supports the team in administrative tasks.

Training and Development

- Initial Training: Provide comprehensive training on beekeeping practices, pest management, and honey extraction. This could be done through workshops, online courses, or collaboration with local experts.

- Ongoing Development: Offer continuous learning opportunities to keep staff updated on the latest beekeeping techniques and industry trends.

- Cross-Training: Encourage cross-training so that staff members can cover multiple roles when needed, ensuring flexibility and resilience.

Staffing Levels

- Initial Phase: Start with a small team, including a Beekeeping Manager, a few Beekeepers, and a Marketing and Sales Manager. This core team will establish the initial operations.

- Expansion Phase: As the project grows, hire additional Beekeepers, a Pest and Disease Control Specialist, a Quality Control Specialist, and a Logistics Coordinator.

Recruitment and Retention

- Local Recruitment: Focus on hiring locally to support the community and benefit from local knowledge and experience.

- Fair Wages and Benefits: Offer competitive salaries and benefits to attract and retain skilled workers. Consider providing health insurance, performance bonuses, and professional development opportunities.

- Positive Work Environment: Foster a positive and collaborative work environment. Encourage teamwork and recognize employees' contributions to boost morale and productivity.

Volunteers and Seasonal Workers

- Volunteer Programs: Engage local community members through volunteer opportunities, especially during peak seasons like honey harvest time.

- Seasonal Workers: Hire additional seasonal workers during busy periods to ensure smooth operations and maintain productivity.

By implementing this staffing plan, you can ensure that your beekeeping project operates efficiently and maintains high standards of quality and sustainability.

Layout for Your Beekeeping Operation in Joun

Here's how you can set up the layout for your beekeeping operation in Joun:

Hive Placement

- Orientation: Position hives to face southeast to catch the morning sun. This helps warm the hives early in the day, encouraging bees to start foraging sooner.

- Spacing: Place hives at least 1 meter apart to prevent bees from drifting between colonies and to make it easier to inspect and manage them.

- Elevation: Elevate hives on stands or pallets to protect them from ground moisture and predators.

Work Areas

- Honey Extraction Area: A clean, enclosed space for extracting honey. This area should have easy access to water and electricity.

- Storage Area: Separate storage areas for empty equipment and harvested honey. This should be cool, dry, and secure to protect products from pests and spoilage.

- Feeding Area: A space for preparing and storing bee feed, such as sugar syrup and pollen patties.

Additional Infrastructure

- Water Source: Ensure there's a nearby water source for bees. You can set up shallow dishes with pebbles for the bees to land on.

- Shade and Wind Protection: Use trees, shrubs, or artificial barriers to provide shade and protect hives from strong winds.

- Pathways: Create clear pathways around hives to facilitate easy access for inspections and maintenance.

Community Engagement Space

- Educational Area: A designated area for hosting workshops and tours, where visitors can learn about beekeeping and the importance of bees.

- Observation Hive: Consider setting up an observation hive in this area to give visitors an up-close look at bee activity.

Safety Measures

- Protective Gear Storage: A designated area for storing protective gear such as suits, gloves, and veils.

- Emergency Equipment: Keep first aid kits and fire extinguishers readily accessible.

This layout ensures efficient operation and smooth workflow while providing a safe and engaging environment for both bees and beekeepers.

Automatic Honey Processing Line

Multi-sweet full automatic honey processing line is a system that automates the processing honey, from harvested honey from beehive frames to the final bottled/packaged honey. The plant involves a series of machines working together, each performing a specific task in the processing of the honey, and you can have customized your auto honey processing plant.

The following is the 2t auto honey processing line as an example. For each step in the honey processing line, please click to learn more or contact us directly.



An Example of Grant Request Project Proposal on "Promoting Beekeeping for Livelihood Improvement in Joun"

The aim of this project proposal is to promote beekeeping as a sustainable livelihood option for communities in Joun. Beekeeping has the potential to improve the livelihoods of individuals and communities by providing income generation opportunities, enhancing food security through pollination, and promoting environmental conservation. This project will focus on capacity building, infrastructure development, and market access to support the establishment and growth of beekeeping enterprises in the region.

Beekeeping is a viable income-generating activity that has been successfully adopted in various parts of the world. Joun, with its rich biodiversity and favorable climatic conditions, presents significant potential for beekeeping. By encouraging the adoption of beekeeping practices and supporting beekeepers with the necessary resources, this project aims to empower local communities to improve their livelihoods sustainably.

Objectives:

The main objectives of the project are as follows:

- Promote beekeeping as a sustainable livelihood option for communities in Joun.
- Provide capacity building and training opportunities for local beekeepers.
- Establish beekeeping infrastructure, including apiaries and honey processing facilities.
- Enhance market access for beekeeping products, both locally and internationally.
- Foster environmental conservation and promote biodiversity through pollination.

Project Activities

Training and Capacity Building:

- Conduct training sessions on modern beekeeping techniques, hive management, honey harvesting, and value addition.
- Organize workshops to educate beekeepers about sustainable beekeeping practices and conservation strategies.
- Provide training on business management and entrepreneurship to help beekeepers establish and manage successful enterprises.

Infrastructure Development:

- Establish apiaries in strategic locations to maximize honey production and promote pollination.
- Provide beekeeping equipment, including hives, protective gear, and tools, to support local beekeepers.

• Set up honey processing facilities and provide training on honey extraction, filtration, and packaging.

Market Access and Value Addition:

- Develop market linkages for beekeeping products, including honey, beeswax, propolis, and royal jelly, both locally and internationally.
- Support the establishment of beekeepers' cooperatives to enhance bargaining power and access to markets.
- Promote value addition by facilitating the production of honey-based products such as candles, soaps, and cosmetics.

Environmental Conservation and Biodiversity Promotion:

- Raise awareness about the importance of bees in pollination and biodiversity conservation.
- Encourage the planting of bee-friendly plants and flowers to provide a sustainable food source for bees.
- Collaborate with local communities and stakeholders to establish protected areas for native bee species.

Target Beneficiaries: The project will primarily target smallholder farmers, unemployed youth, women's groups, and marginalized communities in Joun. By empowering these groups with the necessary skills, resources, and market access, the project aims to alleviate poverty, reduce unemployment, and enhance food security in the region.

Partnerships: To ensure the success and sustainability of the project, collaboration with various stakeholders is crucial. Potential partners include government agencies, non-governmental organizations, agricultural research institutions, beekeeping associations, and private sector actors involved in honey processing and marketing.

Budget: The estimated budget for the project is [insert amount]. The budget will cover expenses related to training and capacity building, infrastructure development, market access initiatives, and project management. Detailed budget breakdown and funding sources will be provided in the full project plan.

Monitoring and Evaluation: The project will implement a robust monitoring and evaluation framework to track progress and measure the impact of the interventions. Key performance indicators will include the number of trained beekeepers, honey production volumes, income generation, employment creation, and environmental conservation indicators. Regular monitoring visits, surveys, and data collection will ensure effective project management and informed decision-making.

Sustainability and Impact: By promoting beekeeping as a sustainable livelihood option, this project will have long-lasting impacts on local communities in Joun. The

establishment of beekeeping enterprises will contribute to increased incomes, improved food security, and reduced dependency on traditional agriculture. Moreover, the project's focus on environmental conservation will help preserve biodiversity and promote sustainable development in the region.

Conclusion: This project proposal seeks to harness the potential of beekeeping to improve livelihoods in Joun. By providing training, infrastructure, and market access, we aim to empower communities to establish thriving beekeeping enterprises, contributing to poverty reduction, food security, and environmental sustainability. We look forward to the support and collaboration of stakeholders in realizing this vision and making a positive impact in Joun.

Local Sources of Support and Resources

There are several local sources of support and resources you can tap into for your beekeeping project in Joun:

Government Programs

- Ministry of Agriculture: Offers grants, technical assistance, and training programs for agricultural projects, including beekeeping.

- Lebanese Agricultural Research Institute (LARI): Provides research, development, and extension services to support sustainable agriculture and beekeeping.

Local NGOs and Cooperatives

- ACTED: In collaboration with SHEILD and the Akkar Network for Development, ACTED has implemented projects to support beekeeping cooperatives in Lebanon.

- Beekeeping Cooperatives: Joining a local cooperative can provide you with shared resources, knowledge, and collective bargaining power. Look for cooperatives in the region that support beekeepers.

Educational Institutions

- Universities: Collaborate with agricultural faculties at local universities such as the American University of Beirut (AUB) or Lebanese University (LU) for research support and technical training.

Local Experts and Beekeepers

- Beekeeper Associations: Engage with local beekeeper associations to network, share knowledge, and get practical advice from experienced beekeepers.

- Workshops and Seminars: Attend workshops and seminars organized by local experts to learn best practices and new techniques in beekeeping.

Funding and Financial Support

- Microfinance Institutions: Access microloans and financial support from institutions that focus on agricultural projects.

- Commercial Banks: Some banks offer specialized loan programs for beekeepers and farmers.

Community Engagement

- Local Markets and Events: Participate in local markets and events to promote your products and engage with the community.

- School Programs: Partner with local schools to provide educational programs about the importance of bees and beekeeping.

Networking

- Online Forums and Groups: Join online forums and social media groups for beekeepers to share experiences, ask questions, and find support.

- Local Initiatives: Get involved in local environmental and agricultural initiatives to build connections and find additional resources.

These local sources of support can provide valuable resources, knowledge, and funding to help you successfully establish and grow your beekeeping project in Joun.

International Donors And Organizations That Support Beekeeping Projects

There are several international donors and organizations that support beekeeping projects and can provide funding and resources:

1. United Nations Agencies

- FAO (Food and Agriculture Organization): Offers various programs and funding opportunities for sustainable agriculture and beekeeping projects.

- UNDP (United Nations Development Programme): Supports projects that promote sustainable livelihoods, including beekeeping.

2. International NGOs and Charities

- Beekeepers for Development (BfD): Provides resources and funding opportunities for beekeeping projects in developing countries

- Christian Aid: Supports agricultural projects, including beekeeping, to improve livelihoods in developing regions.

- The Bee Conservancy: Focuses on protecting bees and supporting beekeepers through various initiatives and funding opportunities.

3. Foundations and Trusts

- Planet Bee Foundation: Offers grants and resources to support bee conservation and beekeeping projects.

- Pollinator Partnership: Works to protect pollinators and their habitats, providing funding and resources for beekeeping initiatives.

4. Government Aid Programs

- EU Aid: The European Union provides funding for agricultural and environmental projects, including beekeeping

- DFID (UK Department for International Development): Supports agricultural development projects in developing countries, including beekeeping.

5. Private Donors and Philanthropists

- Philanthropic Individuals: Some private donors and philanthropists are willing to sponsor beekeeping projects, especially those focused on sustainability and community development.

6. Online Funding Platforms

- FundsforNGOs: A platform that lists various grants and funding opportunities for sustainability projects, including beekeeping

- Impactful: Provides a list of charities and organizations that support bee conservation and beekeeping projects

These international donors and organizations can provide valuable support for your beekeeping project in Joun.

Project Impact on Joun

As discussed earlier, the project will have various positive impacts such as:

Infrastructure for value addition: This project would aim to integrate and streamline existing value chains in the Chouf region by creating centralized infrastructure for value addition and preservation.

The unit will thus provide benefits on cost, quality and convenience for sustainable growth in the market driven economy. The unit has been envisaged in a way that it would ensure better returns to all players in each level of value chains ranging from procurement, storage, processing, packaging to distribution of food commodities through vertical integration of functions and horizontal linkages of destinations.

Reduction of Wastages: The infrastructure created at the unit along with the integration of backward and forward linkages would lead to more efficient supply chains and reduction of wastages. This would provide higher value realization to all players in the supply chain including the farmers.

Creation of employment: The project shall generate employments. It is estimated that the it would generate direct employment of about 14 workers and indirect employment of another 30 workers. Most of the manpower requirement will be met from the local area.

Return to farmers: The unit will be benefiting farmers in the region by increasing the returns for farmers by decreasing wastages and increasing demand of the agricultural produce.

Business Plan for Beekeeping Operation in Joun

Business Name: Joun Honey Production Company

Business Address: Joun, Al Chouf, Lebanon]

Business Overview:

[Your Beekeeping Business Name] will be a commercial beekeeping operation, producing honey, beeswax, and other bee-related products. The business will aim to sustainably raise bees, produce high-quality honey, and sell beeswax, pollen, and propolis to local markets and online customers. Additionally, we will offer pollination services to local farms.

Mission Statement:

To provide high-quality, organic honey and bee products while supporting local agriculture and promoting environmental sustainability.

Vision Statement:

To become a leading supplier of premium honey and bee products in our region while contributing to the conservation of bees and educating the community on the importance of pollinators.

Business Goals:

• Establish a colony of 50 hives within the first year.

• Sell honey and other bee products through local markets, online platforms, and retail outlets.

• Expand into pollination services for local farms by year two.

• Become a community leader in promoting sustainability and bee conservation.

Market Research

Industry Overview:

The beekeeping industry is growing as demand for natural, organic products such as honey, beeswax, and pollen increases. As consumers become more health-conscious, honey is preferred over processed sugars. Additionally, the need for pollination services is expanding, driven by the agricultural sector.

Target Market:

• Local Markets: We will focus on selling honey and beeswax products in farmers' markets, local shops, and health food stores.

• Online Customers: E-commerce will allow us to sell honey and bee-related products nationwide.

• Pollination Services: Target local farmers growing crops that rely on pollination, such as fruits, vegetables, and nuts.

Market Trends:

• Increased demand for organic, locally sourced products.

• Growing awareness of the importance of pollinators in the food supply chain.

• Rise in home remedies using honey, propolis, and beeswax for health and wellness.

Competitive Analysis:

• Direct Competitors: Other local beekeepers who sell honey and bee products at similar markets and online.

• Indirect Competitors: Larger commercial honey brands that may have more distribution channels but may not provide local, organic products.

Competitive Advantage:

- Organic, locally sourced honey.
- Sustainable beekeeping practices that promote bee health.
- Strong connection with the local community and agricultural sector.

Operations Plan

Location:

The beekeeping operation will be located on a rural plot of land, providing ample space for hive placement, honey extraction facilities, and storage.

Suppliers:

• Bee colonies and queens will be sourced from local and reputable breeders.

• Hive equipment, jars, and packaging will be sourced from specialty suppliers for beekeeping tools.

Equipment:

- Beehives (Langstroth or top-bar)
- Honey extractor
- Smoker, hive tools, and protective clothing
- Jars and packaging materials

Production Process:

1. Bee Management: Regular monitoring of hive health, ensuring the colonies are strong, and treating any diseases or pests.

2. Honey Harvesting: Honey will be harvested in late summer and early fall using sustainable techniques that allow bees to retain enough honey for winter.

3. Product Processing: Honey will be filtered, bottled, and labeled for sale. Beeswax will be processed and sold as candles, balms, or raw blocks.

Marketing Plan

Branding:

Our brand will emphasize natural, organic, and sustainable practices, with a strong local identity. The packaging will be eco-friendly, and the logo will highlight bees and nature.

Sales Channels:

- Local farmers' markets.
- Health food stores and small retailers.
- E-commerce platforms such as Etsy or Shopify.
- Direct sales from our website.

Marketing Strategy:

• Build an attractive website with an e-commerce platform.

• Use social media (Instagram, Facebook) to educate customers about the benefits of honey and the importance of bees.

• Partner with local restaurants or health shops to offer our honey as a featured product.

• Offer educational workshops or tours of the apiary to engage the local community and build brand awareness.

Financial Plan

Startup Costs:

- Bee colonies and queens: \$5,000
- Beehive equipment and supplies: \$10,000
- Honey extraction and bottling equipment: \$4,000
- Land preparation and hive placement: \$3,000
- Marketing and website development: \$2,000
- Miscellaneous: \$2,000

Total startup costs: \$26,000

Revenue Streams:

• Honey Sales: Expected to produce 1,000 lbs of honey in year 1, selling at \$8 per lb = \$8,000.

• Beeswax Products: Selling beeswax candles, balms, and raw beeswax, expected revenue = \$3,000.

• Pollination Services: Offering pollination services to local farms, expected revenue = \$5,000 (in year 2).

Projected Annual Revenue (Year 1):

• Honey and beeswax sales: \$11,000

• Net profit: Expected to break even by year 2 with net profits starting in year 3.

Management and Staffing

Owner: Joun Municipality

Will oversee all aspects of the business, including beekeeping operations, marketing, sales, and community outreach.

Staff:

Part-time help will be required during the peak honey harvesting season, as well as for processing and packaging products.

Consultants:

We will work with a local beekeeping expert to ensure the health of our colonies and to help troubleshoot any challenges that arise.

Sustainability and Expansion Plan

Sustainability Efforts:

• Use organic practices to maintain the health of bees and the environment.

• Engage in local bee conservation initiatives to support the regional bee population.

Expansion:

In year 2, expand from 50 hives to 100 hives and begin offering pollination services. In year 3, increase online sales and begin exporting to other regions.

Risk Analysis

Risks:

- Disease or pests affecting the health of the bee colonies.
- Adverse weather conditions that impact honey production.
- Competition from other beekeepers and commercial honey brands.

Mitigation Strategies:

- Regular monitoring and maintenance of bee health.
- Diversify income streams (pollination services, beeswax products, etc.).

• Build strong relationships with local retailers and markets to secure consistent sales.

Conclusion:

Joun Honey Company has the potential to become a profitable, community-focused business that supports sustainable agriculture and provides high-quality honey and bee products to local and national markets.

With a commitment to quality and sustainability, we are well-positioned for success in the growing beekeeping industry.

END OF THE DOCUMENT